FILED BID J. WHITE FEB 28 1997

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By\_\_\_\_\_Chief Deputy Clerk

MARTIN KESSLER Appellant

SUPREME COURT CASE NO. 89,501

LOWER TRIBUNAL CASE No. 4803

V.

CITY OF WINTER PARK Appellee

# **COVER SHEET**

TYPE OF BRIEF: INITIAL BRIEF, SECOND AMENDED

FILED BY: MARTIN KESSLER, APPELLANT, PRO.SE.

ADDRESS:

ESS: WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, 32789 407-645-3113 IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

MARTIN KESSLER Appellant

v.

SUPREME COURT CASE No. 89,501

LOWER COURT CASE No. 96-4803

CITY OF WINTER PARK Appellee

##

#### A. STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND THE FACTS

Appellant , in accordance with Fla. R. App. P 9.210 (b)(3), provides the following Statement of the Case and of the facts. We include the nature of the case, the course of the proceedings, and the disposition in the lower tribunal. For each and every statement and fact there will be cited the

page of the record, reproduced copies of which will be page numbered in the appendix for ease of reference, or reference will **be** to the transcript, as required.

1. Appellee , as Plaintiff, filed a complaint under the authority of Chapter 75, Florida Statute , in the Ninth Judicial Circuit for validation of bonds. A Final Judgment Validating General Obligation Bonds was entered November 6, 1996. [Exhibit 1, Apx. Page.1 3

2. The State of Florida answered the complaint [Exhibit 2 ,Apx, page 7]

3. Appellant/Defendant came forth as an Intervenor.
[ Transcript, Page 2 ]

3. As a condition precedent to filing a complaint for the validation of bonds , Appellee called an election to be held June 4, 1996. [ Exhibit 11, Apx. page 62 ]

4. Hereinafter , to and including Page 4, we briefly state in chronological order the course of the proceedings and the sequence of factual events preceding the complaint for validation **up** to rendition of the Final Judgment of the Circuit Court.

a. City Ordinance No. 2137 was issued March 12, 1996 : [ Exhibit 11, Page 62 ] which, among other things, provided:

> AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, CALLING A BOND REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON THE QUESTION OF ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING \$5,125,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 1996, OF THE

CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, TO FINANCE THE COST OF THE ACQUISITION OF THE GREEN SPACE KNOWN AS THE WINTER PARK GOLF COURSE: AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH BONDS IF APPROVED BY REFERENDUM; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. [ ITALICS ADDED ]

This Ordinance, in Section 2 therein, stated that the bonds, and the *cost* of the acquisition of the property and all purposes incidental thereto *is defined* collectively as the "Project"

b. A Referendum was conducted June 4, 1996 under the *direct auspices* and *control* of the City Commission , with the following ballot title and summary as specified in " Section 6, Official Ballot" [ Exhibit 11, Apx. Page 63 ] reproduced here as follows:

GREEN SPACE ( GOLF COURSE ) ACQUISITION

SHALL THE CITY OF WINTER PARK ISSUE NOT EXCEEDING \$5,125,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, BEARING INTEREST AT NOT EXCEEDING THE MAXIMUM LEGAL RATE, MATURING WITHIN 20 YEARS FROM DATE OF ISSUANCE, PAYABLE FROM AD VALOREM TAXES LEVIED ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY IN THE CITY AREA, WITHOUT LIMITATION AS TO RATE OR AMOUNT, FOR FINANCING THE ACQUISITION OF THE GREEN SPACE KNOWN AS THE WINTER PARK GOLF COURSE, AS PROVIDED IN ORDINANCE NO. 2137? [ITALICS ADDED ]

c. Following the referendum the city issued Resolution No. 1635, June 11,1996, canvassing the results of the referendum. Votes were cast by 4573 electors of which 3497 were in favor of the bonds and 1076 voted against the bonds.[Exhibit 12, Apx. page 65] d. Resolution No. 1636 , "The Bond Resolution", dated June 25, 1996 , followed 21 days after the referendum , and said in part:

> A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING \$5,125,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 1996, OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE COST OF THE ACQUISITION OF THE GREEN SPACE KNOWN AS THE WINTER PARK GOLF COURSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. ITALICS ADDED [ EXHIBIT 13 APX. PAGE 67 ] ]

In Section 2.K. of this Resolution No.1636 we now read:

"PROJECT" SHALL MEAN THE ACQUISITION OF THE GREEN SPACE KNOWN AS THE WINTER PARK GOLF COURSE PROPERTY OWNED BY THE ELIZABETH MORSE GENIUS FOUNDATION, INC. ( THE FOUNDATION ); ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE OPTION CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE BETWEEN THE ISSUER AND THE FOUNDATION REGARDING SUCH PROPERTY ( THE "OPTION CONTRACT" ), AS AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTED FROM TIME TO TIME. [ ITALICS ADDED ]

In Section 3.A. of this Resolution No. 1636 we now read:

THE COMMISSION, BY ORDINANCE NO. 2137 OF THE ISSUER, HAS HERETOFORE DETERMINED THAT IT IS NECESSARY AND DESIRABLE TO ISSUE THE BONDS IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING \$5,125,100 FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING PART OF TEE COST OF PROJECT. TEE TOTAL COST OF THE PROJECT IS \$8,000,000 AND THE BALANCE THEREOF SHALL BE PAID FROM OTHER LEGALLY AVAILABLE FUNDS OF THE ISSUER. THE PROJECT IS A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND A CAPITAL PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUER MAY ISSUE BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 166, PART 111, FLORIDA STATUTES. [ ITALICS ADDED ] e. Judge John H. Adams , Sr. heard the case on November 6, 1996 [ A Transcript of the proceeding is attached ]

5. The state's attorney's argument pointed out, in its amended answer to the complaint, that material facts were absent from the ballot. We quote from the State's answer: [ Exhibit 2, Apx. page 7 <u>Amended Answer of the State</u> <u>Attorney</u>, paragraph 1, b. and referenced also in Transcript , page 76, line 8 to page 77, line 6 ]

> " b. the Referendum ballot is defective and misleading in that plaintiff failed to state therein that it already owned two (2) holes of the Winter Park Golf Course and that the total purchase price for the acquisition of the remaining Winter Park Golf Course property was \$8,000,000, a portion of which would be paid from other funds,"

6. The Appellant/Intervenor argued : That the ballot ordinance and ballot summary was misleading and in violation of F.S.100.341 (Exhibit 3, Apx. page 10 ) in that three material facts were absent from the ballot. [Transcript, page 65, line 19 to page 76, line 5 ]

7. Judge John H. Adams, Sr. having heard the arguments from Plaintiff / Appellee, the Intervenor, and the State Attorney, issued his judgment for the City and thereupon signed **a** Final Judgment Validating General Obligation Bonds [Exhibit 1, Apx. page 1] which had been prepared in advance by the Appellee and submitted for signature at the

conclusion of the hearing. [Transcript, page 81, line 25 to page 82 line 8]

8. This concludes the Appellant's Statement of the Case and the Facts.

#### B. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

1. Appellant summarizes his argument to this court in the form of a concise and direct question, to wit:

"Shall a validation be permitted to stand when the referendum as a condition thereto was conducted by a municipality that knowingly omitted material facts from the ballot, but argues, defense, that such facts may be found within public documents or local newspapers; therefore, such facts need not be included within *the* ballot to adequately inform the voters of the measure before them, which argument was upheld by the Lower Court."

2. Appellant also offers for this court's consideration a series of six inferential questions which can logically be derived out of the substance of his arguments. The inferential questions are:

a. What is the ultimate test as to the legality of a ballot?

b. May a municipality in the State Of Florida issue a ballot and omit material facts that are otherwise contained within public records which, but far their

omission, would have caused a voter to cast his ballot differently ?

c. Who is the competent authority to decide what facts are material or not material that can render a ballot defective ?

d. Can a ballot be considered legally sufficient if material facts are not included but the voter is obliged or required or directed or instructed or expected to undertake a search of the public records prior to an election to decide for himself whether facts included in a proposed ballot are or are not material ?

e. Should a voter be confident all material facts that ought to be known to cast a ballot intelligently are included in the ballot by his government or must he assume nothing in the ballot can be trusted to be accurate and material *unless* he undertakes his own independent investigation. ?

f. Is it legally sufficient for a voter to assume facts relating to an upcoming election as reported in the newspapers or disseminated by a Political Action Committee can be relied upon to be material and true , notwithstanding other facts described in a ballot summary ?

g. Is it unreasonable to expect a voter to hold a presumption of honesty that his government will issued ballots not misleading or deceptive, or shall voters assume all ballots are fair, and if so, who can ever raise a complaint?

#### C. APPELLANT'S ARGUMENTS

Appellant **s** now proceeds to offer specific factual detail and argument to be discussed with greater particularity in Sections C.1, **C.2** and C.3 below on each of the three material facts **he** avers **the** omission of which rendered the referendum ballot defective , the election illegal and the subsequent validation improper.

1. Appellant will argue the ballot was defective and therefore unfair to the electorate. The ultimate test as to the legality of a ballot is whether or not voters were afforded an opportunity to express themselves fairly. **State v.** Special Tax School District No. 1, 86 So.2nd. 419 (Fla. 1956). [Exhibit 8, Apx. page 48]. Appellant argues the omission of material facts from a ballot is prima facie Unfair. How can fraud be fair? How can misrepresentation be fair? Unfairness is self-evident and needs no torturous argument for proof. Whenever a ballot fails to provide material details necessary to adequately inform the electorate on the measure before him, what is before him is unfair.

2. Appellant suggests at least two critical questions need an answer by this court in order to determine the litigation, namely: (1) When is a fact said to be material and who decides whether such facts shall or shall not be on a ballot ? and (2) Did the ballot in the referendum preceding the validation in question unfairly omit material

facts and fail equally to meet the mandatory direction of
F.S. 100.341 which calls for , among other things, "....
details necessary to inform the electorate. " ?

3. As to the first question, we cite in support of our argument: [Exhibit 6 , Apx. page 29 ]

From: Hauben v. Harmon, 605 F. 2nd 921,923, 924 (5th Cir 1979):

" A fact is material if but for the alleged non-disclosure or misrepresentation the complaining party would not have entered into the transaction;

" furthermore, the issue of materiality of alleged nondisclosure or misrepresentation is a *question* of fact under Florida law." [ Emphasis added ]

4. As to the second question, Appellant's major contention in arguing a defective ballot rested an the authority that a ballot summary may be defective if it omits material facts necessary to make the ballot not misleading .Advisory Opinion to the Attorney General 592 So.2nd. 228 ( Supreme Court of Florida 1991 ).

[Exhibit 4, Apx. page 11 ]

From: Advisory Opinion To The Attorney General - Limited Political Terms In Certain Elected Offices 592 So. 2nd 228 (Supreme Court of Florida 1991): "A ballot summary may be defective if it omits material facts necessary to make the summary not misleading" [Italics Added] 5. Appellant also argues the language calling for ".... together with other details necessary to inform the electors." as mandated in Florida Statutes, 100.341 [ Exhibit 3, Apx. page 10 3 were not intended by the legislature to mean trivial details. The language in the Law establishes a mandatory obligation on a municipality issuing a ballot to render a fair ballot. It is well established that mandatory provisions of election laws are those the violation of which invalidates the election. Disregarding mandatory requirements, or matters of substance will vitiate the election. State v. City of West Palm Beach, 174 So. 334,338 (Fla. 1937). [Exhibit 9, Apx. page 51]

6. Failure on the part of the Appellee to comply fully with the statute is not a mere "irregularity" but constitutes an clear violation. The words within the Statute are manifestly comprehensible for anyone to understand. The details called for must be of such a nature that not only is the measure clear and not misleading but the information is sufficiently informative ( i.e., "material ", Appellant asserts ) that but for it's omission the voter may very well have **cast** his ballot another way. Indeed, the specific language mandating ",.,together with other details necessary to inform the **electorate**". is precisely the compelling statutory guard **erected by the Legislature to ensure material facts are not omitted** from a ballot lest it render the referendum null and void, <u>otherwise what are we to take</u> **those words to mean** 

#### C.1 AS TO THE FIRST OMITTED MATERIAL FACT

1. Facts which if *knowingly withheld* and could be said to have altered the outcome of an referendum if not otherwise concealed from ballot, are judged to be material facts and its omission is deemed sufficiently misleading to render a ballot null and void. *Advisory Opinion To The Attorney* General , 592 So. 2nd. 225 (Fla. 1991) [Exhibit 4 , Apx. page 11] and *Winterfield v. Town of Palm Beach*, 455 So. 2nd 359, 361 (Fla. 1984) [Exhibit 10, Apx. page 57]

2. Due to the Appellee's misrepresentation and omission of material facts, we do not know how many voters would have cast their ballot against the bonds had the Project, the purchase price, and method of payment been overtly and legally displayed in the language in the ballot. Moreover, if **a** fraud has occurred, are the voters to decide whether the outcome would have been different ? This is only possible by invalidation of the referendum and the conduct of an election with a ballot **now** incorporating the facts said to be material. **But** it **is manifestly obvious an** *election cannot be an experiment done twice, one with the other without facts alleged to be material , the omission of which is the question to be decided.* Appealing a validation judgment to a court on the question of the legality of a ballot is to ask, in effect, for Justices to

be sitting surrogates and conduct a "second election", so to speak, and determine how, in their opinion, a reasonable man would have cast his ballot knowing facts now that were unknown before. There is clear and convincing evidence on the record on appeal that some voters would have rejected the referendum had they not been misled by the omission of facts Appellant argues were material. [ For example, see Evidence Control Report, Defendant's exhibit #2, reproduced herein as Exhibit #19, Apx. page 117, and testimony of the witness in the Transcript at page 50, line 4 to page 53, line 14 ]

3. We now turn to the question of fraud. Appellant avers he may logically conclude the standard for fraud has been met by following *Hauben v. Harmon, 606* F.2nd 921 (5th Cir. 1979) [ Exhibit 6 , Apx. page 29 ]:

a. First, the Appellee's Resolution and ballot issued a false statement as to the cost of the project for the property to be purchased which the city knew was false.

b. Second, the Appellee became an ardent and nonneutral advocate for passage of the referendum, with the intent to *induce* the *electorate to act on the representations* made in the ballot summary by lecture and its official publications.

c. As a consequence, the electorate is to suffer damage in the form of an increase in property taxes for the next 20 years as a result of this misguided and fraudulent action on the part of the city, and on the part of City

officials and their advisors who, having superior knowledge, should have known not to misrepresent the cost of the project and the method of payment and the property to be acquired in the ballot summary.

> From: Hauben V. Harmon, 605 F. 2nd 923, 924 ( 5th Cir 1979 ):

"Generally, in order to establish a cause of action in fraud under Florida law, a Plaintiff must establish that : (1) a Appellant knowingly made a false statement concerning a material fact; (2) the Appellant intended that the Plaintiff rely on the statement: (3) the Plaintiff relied on the statement; and (4) the Plaintiff was damaged as a result of that reliance" [Italics Added ]

4. Florida Statutes 100.341, Bond Referendum Ballot, [Exhibit 10, Apx. page 10] directs the authority calling for the referendum to comply with four specifically mandated requirements and , in addition, "..... together with other details necessary to inform the electors," as the full and complete issue before the electorate and on which representations they are to cast a ballot.

5. Appellant avers it is fair , reasonable and relevant to argue (1) it is not enough to print the ballot on plain white paper, (2) it is not enough to describe the bonds, (3) it is not enough to state the amount of the bonds, (4) it is not enough to state the interest rate for all such items are specific by enumeration. The statute clearly mandatesip

**addition\_"...t**ogether with other details necessary to inform the **electors".** 

6. Appellant argues the phrase,"....together with other details....", is not to be interpreted as redundant prose, but is ,we aver , legislatively intended to mean just what it says, "...other [ i,e,"material" ] details necessary to inform ... " to ensure , that is to say, no omission or misrepresentation will occur to deceive the voters. The ballot here at issue fails to meet the test of "....other details necessary . . .. ". We are not quibbling with words. We suggest to this court a difference in the "Cost of the Project " of \$3,000,000 is a necessary and material detail to be included in the ballot summary and not withheld for one can never know what may pass in the mind of a voter when he enters a private and secret polling booth and decides -- after all the election paraphernalia and politicking has ended -- whether he would be for or against the purchase of real estate for \$8,000,000 rather than \$5,125,000 and also depleting city reserved by \$3,000,000. We have no way of knowing , now that the election is over, how many of the electorate would have balked at a cost of the project of \$8,000,000, had the ballot so stated .

7. The failure of the ballot to state the purchase price in a real estate acquisition and stating *only* the amount to be borrowed for such purchase, where the amount to be borrowed is significantly *less than* the purchase price, is a serious and material omission. Is not the electorate to

believe the stated amount to be borrowed can be assumed to be the full purchase price if the ballot is silent on this material detail ? The voter has no way of knowing the true **property tax impact** of his financial burden for it could conceivably be based on any purchase price over the amount to be financed if he is not informed of the purchase price.

8. The property tax impact, however is explained to the electorate by the city's publication as a " Green Space Tax Calculation" The city produces a newsletter, called "The Update", [Exhibit 21, Apx. 120] which is mailed to all citizens. Prior to the June 4th election , in the April 1996 issue, page 5 and 6, the city advises the citizen how to calculate the property tax impact, This is a faulty and misleading calculation . Is based only on the partial amount of money to be borrowed to pay for the " Green Space " purchase. This is grossly misleading for what is clearly implied suggests to the electorate by the Appellee's own publication that " \$5 million borrowed to pay for the purchase of the "Green Space" at current interest rates would be approximately \$402,190 per year, (see page 5 and 6 ) leaving the clear impression to a voter that the tax burden will be \$5 million , and not \$8 million. A flagrant misrepresentation of the truth of the matter.[ Exhibit 21, Apx. page 120. See also Appellee's Evidence #7 on the record , the "Update", April 1996, a city publication, page 5 and 7 therein. ]

9. The Appellee knew the total cost of the project was to be \$8,000,000. The Appellee entered into a contract three months prior to the referendum<u>without appraisal of</u> the aolf course - offering \$8,000,000, which the seller - without having stipulated an asking price - readily accepted without complaint ! [Exhibit 14, Apx. page 86]

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