IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

MARTIN KESSLER, Appellant, SUPREME COURT CASE NO. 89,501

LOWER TRIBUNAL CASE NO

96-48 3

APR 7 157

V.

CITY OF WINTER PARK, Appellee.

CLEAN BUILDE WE (COM)

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT, NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

C. BRENT McCAGHREN
Florida Bar No. 0123992
Winderweedle, Haines, Ward &
Woodman, P.A.
Post Office Box 880
Winter Park, Florida 32790
(407) 423-4246

JUDSON FREEMAN, JR.
Florida Bar No. 0168204
Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P.
225 Water Street, Suite 2100
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
(904) 353-1264

Attorneys for Appellee, City of Winter Park, Florida

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

ARGUMENT SUMMARY

THE TRIAL JUDGE WAS CORRECT IN HOLDING THAT
THE BOND REFERENDUM BALLOT WAS NOT MISLEADING;
AND WAS CORRECT IN VALIDATING THE BONDS AND
THE PROCEEDINGS INCIDENT THERETO, INCLUDING
THE REFERENDUM.

ARGUMENT

A, Argument Supporting Final Judgment of Trial Court

In December 1995 the City began its public discussion of the proposed purchase by it of holes 2 through 8 of the 9-hole Winter Park golf course (hereinafter, collectively, the "Golf Course Property") then owned by the Foundation. During the December 12, 1995, Joint Work Session of the Commission, the Mayor provided

background and historical information regarding the transaction, the proposed price of \$8,000,000, and the amount of \$1,200,000 the City had saved over a period of 10 years in its Golf Course Acquisition Fund for that purpose.

The pros and cons of purchasing the Golf Course Property for \$8,000,000 (to be financed with a combination of available funds of the City and the proceeds of general obligation bonds) were discussed and debated during additional, duly noticed public meetings of the City held on January 1, 8, 9 and February 12, 13, 25 and 27, 1996; and in articles contained in the Sentinel and the Observer, newspapers of general circulation in the area of the City.

On February 28, 1996, the Foundation executed the Option Contract, which gave the City the option to purchase the Golf Course Property for \$8,000,000. Thereafter, on March 4, 1996, the Mayor executed the Option Contract on behalf of the City. The Option Contract gave the City time to secure financing for the purchase price. Furthermore, the Option Contract stated that the obligation of the City to close the transaction, after the option had been exercised, was contingent upon referendum approval of the bond issue, the size of which would be determined in the City's discretion.

Subsequent to execution of the Option Contract, the focus of the City shifted to determining the size of the bond issue, after consideration of other sources of funds available to the City.

The Referendum Ordinance was read by title a second time and enacted on March 12, 1996, during a Regular Meeting of the

Commission. The ballot question in the Referendum Ordinance (the "Proposition") read as follows:

Shall the City of Winter Park issue not exceeding \$5,125,000 general obligation bonds, bearing interest at not exceeding the maximum legal rate, maturing within 20 years from date of issuance, payable from ad valorem taxes levied on all taxable property in the City area, without limitation as to rate or amount, for financing the acquisition of the Green Space known as the Winter Park Golf Course, as provided in Ordinance No. 2137?

Section 100.341, Florida Statutes (1995), contains the legal requirements for bond referenda ballots, such **as** the Proposition, and requires that each proposition specify the amount of the bonds and interest rate thereon, together with other details necessary to inform the electors.

The amount of the bonds is clearly stated in the Proposition. This court has routinely approved use of the words "not exceeding" before the dollar amount of bonds in a bond referendum proposition.

State v. Southeast Volusia Hosp. Dist., Volusia Co., 238 So.2d 102 (Fla. 1970).

Expressing the interest rate for the bonds in the Proposition through the words "not exceeding the maximum legal rate" was also approved in substance by this court in the same case. **See id.** at 104.

The only other facts deemed necessary by the City to inform the electors, which are typically found in most general obligation bond propositions, were the length of the financing, the source of payment of the bonds, and a general description of the project. The Proposition contained a maturity limitation of 20 years from the date of issuance of the bonds, stated that ad valorem taxes

would be used for payment of the bonds, and described the project in a general manner familiar to residents of the City.

The Proposition was submitted for approval of a general obligation bond issue by the City to finance part of the cost of acquiring the Golf Course Property; it was not submitted for approval of the purchase by the City of the Golf Course Property for \$8,000,000, as suggested by Kessler, since the City had already approved and obtained from the Foundation, an option to purchase the Golf Course Property for that price before the Referendum was held on June 4, 1996. Referendum approval was merely a part of the total financing package for such purchase, as was well understood by the community through (a) 14 public meetings of the Commission; (b) 17 local newspaper articles; (c) 2 Update editions; (d) a political debate between Kessler and an incumbent Commissioner of the City, attended by 100 people; and (e) the dissemination of <u>5,000 flyers</u> by <u>Kessler</u> to residents of the City, advocating rejection of the Proposition; all over a period of approximately 6 months prior to the Referendum (see paragraphs 1-31 of the City's Statement of the Case and the Facts). The trial judge correctly and succinctly stated this important distinction on p. 80 of the trial transcript:

The description of the question to be on the ballot was in the judgment of the Court not misleading. The question put to the voters was whether bonds should be issued in the amount of \$5,125,000. It was not a question put to the voters whether the land should be purchased for eight million dollars. So the question put to the voters was not misleading, it was straightforward and to the point. The question of whether the land should be purchased for eight million dollars was a question that was presented to the Winter Park

<u>City Commission and debated and decided at that level.</u> (emphasis supplied)

Inclusion in the Proposition of information regarding the \$8,000,000 total purchase price of the Golf Course Property was not legally required by §100.341, Fla. Stat. (1995), and, additionally, was unnecessary due to the lengthy public discussion and debate of that matter through previous Commission meetings and local newspaper and periodical articles, followed by the execution of the Option Contract by the City prior to enactment of the Referendum Ordinance. Winterfield v. Town of Palm Beach, 455 So.2d 359, 363 (Fla. 1984); Grapeland Heights Civic Ass'n. v. City of Miami, 267 So.2d 321, 324 (Fla. 1972).

The scope of judicial inquiry in a bond validation proceeding under Chapter 75, Florida Statutes, is very narrow and focuses on whether (a) a public body has the authority to incur the obligation, (b) the purpose of the obligation is legal, and (c) the proceedings authorizing the obligation were proper. Noble v. Martin County Health Facilities, 682 So.2d 1089 (Fla. 1996); GRW Corp. v. Department of Corrections, 642 So.2d 718 (Fla. 1994); Risher v. Town of Ingliss, 522 So. 2d 355 (Fla. 1988); Lodwick v. School District of Palm Beach County, 506 So. 2d 407 (Fla. 1987); State v. City of Daytona Beach, 431 So. 2d 981 (Fla. 1983). dealing with the political or business wisdom of the project are beyond the scope of bond validation proceedings. Lozier v. Collier County, 682 So.2d 551, 553 (Fla. 1996); Penn v. Pensacola-Escambia Government Ctr. Auth., 311 So.2d 97 (Fla. 1975); State v. Dade Co., So. 2d 79 (Fla. 1962); State v. Florida State Turnpike 142

<u>Authority</u>, 134 So.2d 12 (Fla. 1961); <u>State v. Citv of Miami</u>, 103 So.2d 185 (Fla. 1958).

Since Kessler and the Assistant State Attorney stipulated at the trial that the City had the authority to issue the bonds, and the purpose for which the bonds would be issued was legal, there were no other issues properly remaining for consideration by the trial court; consequently, the trial judge was correct in validating the bonds and the proceedings incidental thereto, including the Referendum.

B. Argument Rebutting Kessler's Contentions

all Kessler's pleadings, exhibits, down After boiling appendices, documents in the nature of pleadings and his Initial Brief, and reviewing the evidence, it is very apparent that the gravamen of Kessler's complaint is that the City agreed to pay too Kessler has high a price for purchase of the Golf Course Property, consistently attempted to argue the wisdom of the Golf Course Property transaction in both the trial and this appeal, even though the law is very clear that matters dealing with the political wisdom of a project and the purchase price therefor are beyond the scope of judicial review in a bond validation proceeding under Chapter 75, Florida Statutes (1995).

In <u>Dade County</u>, 142 So.2d at 79, an appeal was taken from a final decree validating revenue bonds of Dade County to be issued for the purpose of developing a unified mass transit system through the acquisition of 4 private transit systems. One issue raised by the appellants related to the "propriety of purchasing and the feasibility of successfully operating" the transportation system. The trial evidence dealt with feasibility of the project and

whether the purchase price was just and reasonable. On pages 89 and 90 of the opinion, Justice Drew stated:

These questions, on their face, are primarily political and lie within an area which courts should enter only with great caution,

* * *

Whether the acquisition of this system is wise from a political or business standpoint is a question upon which this court has no authority to substitute its judgment for that. of the Board.

In a similar fashion Kessler has attempted to show that the Proposition was defective for failure to include the \$8,000,000 purchase price for the Golf Course Property, and the sources of other funds which, along with the bond proceeds, would be used to pay the \$8,000,000 purchase price. In arguing that omission of these facts in the Proposition somehow misled the voters, Kessler has been less than candid about the factual evidence and completely misinterprets the statutory and case law applicable to the case at hand.

On page 23 of his Initial Brief Kessler states: "At no time did any official of the city government - The Mayor, the Commissioners or any city employee - inform the electorate by official documentation produced by the city of the facts herein said to be material by the Kessler." But the evidence contains minutes from 14 public meetings of the Commission, held prior to the Referendum on June 4, 1996, during which thorough discussion and debate took place regarding (a) the background and history leading to the proposed purchase of the Golf Course Property, (b) the \$8,000,000 purchase price, (c) the Option Contract, (d) the approximate balance of \$1,200,000 contained in a Golf Course

Acquisition Fund established by the City 10 years ago, (e) the use of \$2,000,000 from the contingency funds of the City, and (f) the bond referendum schedule. Kessler personally attended 3 of those public meetings and voiced his opposition to purchase of the Golf Course Property and the wording in the Proposition. Furthermore, the City disseminated informational articles concerning the Golf Course Property acquisition in the February and April 1996 editions of the <u>Update</u>, a bi-monthly periodical prepared by employees of the City and circulated to 10,000 residences within the City.

From January 9, 1996, to the date of the Referendum, Kessler became the champion of his cause, which was to prevent acquisition of the Golf Course Property by the City for \$8,000,000. He even ran against an incumbent City Commissioner for her Commission seat, on the sole issue of the Golf Course Property purchase. The February 4, 1996, edition of the <u>Sentinel</u> contained an article quoting Kessler as saying that he wanted to "educate voters" about the Referendum, and that "based on his research, the property is worth less than \$1 million."

The March 10, 1996, edition of the <u>Sentinel</u> contained an article which stated "Kessler believes the \$8 million price tag for the golf course is too high and that voters should turn down the referendum. *** Kessler said it is his duty to let the public know that city officials have 'betrayed' their constituents on the golf course."

The March 14, 1996, edition of the <u>Observer</u> contained an article dealing with the Commission seat campaign of Kessler, and said that Kessler "has mailed <u>over 5,000 flyers</u> to Winter Park voters and believe[s] that many agree with his stand."

The March 27, 1996, edition of the <u>Sentinel</u> contained an article that showed Kessler's overwhelming defeat in his race for the Commission seat by receiving only 25% of the votes cast.

Indeed, after consideration of the active role Kessler played in attempting to educate residents of the City about his cause, his resounding defeat at the polls, and approval of the Proposition by 76% of the votes cast, one could reasonably infer that most City residents disagreed with Kessler.

In <u>Grapeland Heights Civic Ass'n v, City of Miami</u>, 267 So.2d 321 (Fla. 1972), this court dealt with the consolidated appeal of a decision validating a bond issue for public park and recreational facilities in Miami. The bond issue had been approved by Miami voters at a referendum. The pertinent part of the ballot stated that the purpose for the bond issue was "to pay the cost of acquiring *** and improving public park and recreational facilities in the City ***." Part of the appellants' arguments in that case dealt with the ballot language and their insistence that (a) each of the 39 park designations should have been included in the referendum resolution and the ballot, and (b) the electors were not given adequate information on the projects. On page 324 of the opinion this court stated:

find no requirement, as urged by appellants, that the City must expressly project in capital include each City's resolution resolution. The articulating the purposes for the bonds as distinguished from the specific projects, buttressed by the record before the City Commission which sets forth the actual projects, is valid. Lengthy, adversary public <u>consideration</u> given to the designations as the "projects" upon which the bond moneys will be expended, supplements and supports the resolution ***.

The public media, utilizins various means of communication and fulfilling its public trust to inform ***, fully advised voters on all different aspects of the bond issue, including the specific projects in an illustrated color map diagram and description of the location of the exact and only projects encompassed in the bond issue. (emphasis supplied)

Winterfield v. Town of Palm Beach, 455 So.2d 359 (Fla. 1984), also dealt with an appeal of a bond validation judgment. As in Grapeland Heights, the bonds had been approved by referendum. The ballot referred to "acquisition of land for and construction of a police facility," when, in fact, the land had already been acquired by the Town before the referendum, and the bond proceeds would be used to reimburse the Town for land acquisition expenditures. The appellant based his second challenge to the validation on that discrepancy in the ballot. In dismissing his challenge, this court noted that "[t]he prior purchase of the land was a matter of public record, and information leaflets prepared by the town explaining the referendum outlined the situation."

In the instant case the City had on 14 occasions prior to the Referendum, through various Commission meetings, supplied a forum for public discussion and debate of (a) the proposed purchase of the Golf Course Property and all the details regarding the number of holes of the golf course to be purchased, (b) the \$8,000,000 purchase price and justification therefor, and (c) the use of approximately \$3,000,000 of other funds of the City which, when combined with proceeds of the sale of \$5,125,000 of general obligations of the City, would be sufficient to finance the purchase of the Golf Course Property.

The Option Contract was publicly discussed and executed prior to the Referendum. It was a public record, available for inspection by any interested party.

Local newspapers and periodicals ran 19 articles prior to the Referendum, discussing purchase of the Golf Course Property. One edition of the <u>Update</u> contained a full page, color-coded diagram of the golf course, clearly showing which holes were already owned by the City.

Kessler himself had mailed over 5,000 flyers to residents of the City in an attempt to persuade voters to vote "no" on the Proposition.

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